A CENTURY OF CHIRSTIAN SERVICE
By
DONALD A. WISE

The First Presbyterian Church of Arlington County, Virginia is celebrating
its one hundreth anniversary (1872-1972) this year. The church, presently
located on the northeast corner of No. Vermont St. and No. Carlin Springs
Rd., has contributed to the local history of Arlington County.

Historical Setting

Ball’s Crossroads had been a focal point in Arlington County since about
1740 when the two roads were developed. One road started at the future site
of the city of Alexandria and terminated at the mouth of Pimmit Run. The
other road started at Awbury’s Ferry (at the site of Rosslyn) and ended at
Falls Church. The first road much later became known as the Glebe Road
because it passed the glebe of Fairfax Parish and in order to distinguish it
from other roads to the Falls. The second road was eventually named Wilson
Boulevard in honor of President Wilson. The intersection became known as
Ball’'s Crossroads when Ball’s Tavern was established there in the early
1800’s. This two-story log inn was an important gathering place for the
community.1

During the Civil War, Ball’s Crossroads continued to be an important road
junction and therefore was a significant tactical objective. The Union Army
had a cavalry outpost located at the area. On August 29, 1861, Gen.
McClellan requested Prof. Thaddeous Lowe to ascend above Ball's
Crossroads in a gas filled balloon to observe the Confederate Army activities
around Upton’s and Munson’s Hill. When the Confederate troops on
Munson’s Hill (near the present site of Seven Corner’s shopping area) began
firing at the balloon, Lowe was winched down in a hurry.?

By 1870 Alexandria (its name was changed to Arlington in 1920) County
had a population of 3,185 persons and was predominately rural in character.
There were 86 farms in the County and 30 of the farms averaged between 100
and SO0 acres in size.3 George Vanderwerken had the largest farm in the
County which covered 1,316 acres.4 Major agricultural products were dairy
products, corn, oats, winter wheat, potatoes, fruits, and garden vegetables.
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sold for $2,500.00 on July 18, 1892. The new addition was used for the first
time on December 24, 1892, for the Christmas program.

Independent Church

The full Session of the Presbyterian Church of Falls Church met on April
21 and May 12, 1895, to consider the proposal of organizing the Ballston
Branch into a separate and independent church. Elders Miles C. Munson
and Albert P. Douglas represented the Ballston Branch. The motion was
approved and the action of the Session was referred to the Ballston
congregation for their approval. On June 2, 1895, the Ballston congregation
approved the motion and presented it to the Presbytery of Washington City
for approval. On July 5, 1895, the Presbytery approved the organization of
the “First Presbyterian Church” of the Ballston area of Alexandria County,
Virginia. The new congregation consisted of 65 persons who elected four
Elders, five Trustees, three Deacons, and two Deaconesses. The Rev.
Frederick E. Andrews was called as stated supply and began his pastorate on
July 26, 1896. There were 105 members of the congregation who attended the
service.13

The Evening Star of Washington, D.C., made this comment: “The advent
of the electric cars—early service, has led our people into the assumption of
city airs and ways in several respects. The First Presbyterian Church now has
morning services, with its own minister, Rev. Andrews, instead of afternoons,
as formerly, with Rev. Rathbone (sic: Rathbun) of Falls Church. Full benches
and largely increased interest in church matters generally testify most
strongly an appreciation of the change.” 14

On October 26, 1896, the Presbytery met at the First Presbyterian Church
and Rev. Andrews was examined and approved. He was then ordained and
installed as an Evangelist and became the first pastor of the independent
church. A seven-room manse, north of the church, was completed on March
12, 1899, and a garage was erected in 1926. On November 22, 1912, electric
lights replaced the kerosene lamps in the church building. Dedication of the
pipe organ and the renovation of the sanctuary was held in the church on
March 22, 1931. Major improvements continued to be made to the church
facilities and during 1946, the old kitchen, coal bin, and furnace were
replaced by a modern kitchen, rest rooms, a new gas furnace, and a concrete
floor in the basement.

New Church Site

The Rev. George H. Yount was installed as pastor on May 16, 1944.
Membership and attendance increased until it was necessary to hold two
worship services on Sunday. Soon it became apparent that a larger building
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